VL.

VL.

CHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
AUGUST 20, 2019
4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JULY 16, 2019 MEETING: Mr. Mark Bellue
PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Mark Bellue
SAFETY MOMENT: Ms. Renee Simpson
ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff
COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON
Finance & Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue
Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux (no meeting held)
Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran (no meeting held)

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman
Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

OF g 9 by =



Vill. ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of authorization to remove Rhonda Williams and to add Charles
Odimgbe as signatory on behalf of CATS for all Whithey/Hancock Bank accounts
and recommend authorization for the CEO to execute all documents required by
Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes

2. Consideration of authorization for the CEO to settle the worker’s
compensation claim of John Scott. (This matter might possibly be
discussed in executive session. As required by the Open Meeting Law,
notice is hereby given that this claim is a pending worker’'s compensation
claim and that John Scott is the plaintiff and Capital Area Transit System
is the defendant.)

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

X. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225.389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70802,

Individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman (225) 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday
meeting.

[ ]



CHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
JULY 16, 2019
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue

Mr. Bellue called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL

All members were present, namely Messrs. Bellue, Brandt, Breaux, Cohran,
Lambert, and O’Gorman and Mss. Green, Perkins, and Pierre. Also present
were Mr. Bill Deville, CEO; Mr. Darrell Brown, CAO; other CATS staff;
Creighton Abadie, CATS attorney; and members of the public.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JUNE 18, 2019 MEETING

Mr. Lambert moved to approve the minutes of the June 18, 2019, meeting
and Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.
PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mr. Bellue reviewed the public comment process.

Mr. Bellue referenced Hurricane Barry and hoped that all came through the
storm without harm.

SAFETY MOMENT



VI.

Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment centered on emergency
preparedness.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1.

Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff

Mr. Deville commended the work done by the Operations Department
regarding Hurricane Barry. He recognized:Operations Manager
James Payton and Operations Supervisor-Demetrius Gulley for their
time and effort spent ensuring servic s not interrupted and that
there was a CATS presence at MOQHSEP—

as follows: Bus Operator
Utility Technician — 4;

Juné2018, as well as the inclement weather on
ed service to be suspended for several hours.
an 1 preventable accident per 100,000 miles, and

between road calls for the month.

It was noted there are currently 12 cadets in training that will be
ready for full-time status in six to eight weeks. There was discussion
that 147 operators were operators needed to provide service daily,
but this does not take into consideration the extra board operators
that are also required.



Mr. Deville reported that Will Scott & Company had completed its
hiring process for the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Deville
has hired Charles Odimgbe to the post. Mr. Odimgbe has decades of
transit experience, both public and private sector. His first day was
July 9", Mr. Odimgbe let the board know that he is excited for the
challenge and is ready to begin the work.

CATS provided to the Buy America audit firm the last two items
required.

Mr. Rose informed the board that CATS
to discuss transit oriented developmeht opportunities along Plank
Road and Florida Boulevard. Plann id Operations are driving the
bus routes to identify timing, traffic; other possible issues that

t with Build Baton Rouge

Planning and Ope a
changes.

‘e'ﬁtotal operating revenues were
ing subsidies were $1,604,873.

VII. NY ACTION THEREON

1. utive: Mr. Mark Bellue
he committee did not meet.
2. Technical, Policies and Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux

Dr. Breaux noted the committee did not meet.
3. Audit: Mr. Cohran
Mr. Cohran noted the committee did not meet.

4. Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman



VIl

Mr. O’'Gorman noted the committee did not meet.

5. Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins
Ms. Perkins referred the members to the minutes of the committee’s
July 10" meeting in their packets and shared the highlights of the

meeting.

She noted that the committee focused or
operators on customer service.

omplaints and training

noted that there were 8,066
: ancellations and 255

ACTION ITE

ose of the policy is to provide
agement controls of the capital assets for the

that the CATS Capital Asset Policy be adopted and
ded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
s-none. The motion passed unanimously with no

abstentio
2, Consideration of approval of Jeanette Eckert as Records Officer
Mr. Abadie noted that the action is required annually.

Ms. Green moved that Jeanette Eckert continue to be designated as

the Records Officer for Capital Area Transit System and Mr.
O’Gorman seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment



and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

3. Consideration of approval to award bus washer systems contract

Mr. Brown shared that the procurement was an invitation to bid and
three bids were received. The lowest bid was deemed to be fair,
responsive, and responsible.

Mr. Lambert moved that the CEO is authorized to award the bus
washer systems ITB to Tillage Construction, LLC and to enter into a
contract with Tillage Construction, L the amount of $589,000.
Mr. Brandt seconded the motion. [ue invited public comment
and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

e contract /as necessary
e level of work'was not
ith the agency and at that

time, the determinatit
required.

;'i_zea to amend the audit
etterville by $119,500 to a
216,500 and Mr. Lambert seconded the

roval to designate The Advocate as the official
s setforth in the CATS Bylaws

that this is a formality and is required annually. He
has designated The Advocate as it has the highest

Mr. Lambert moved that The Advocate is hereby designated as the
official journal of Capital Area Transit System as set forth in the
Capital Area Transit System bylaws and Ms. Pierre seconded the
motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there was none. The
motion passed unanimously with Mr. Brandt abstaining as he is a
member of The Advocate Community Advisory Board.



XI.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no public comments.

ADJOURNMENT

Ms. Perkins moved to adjourn the meeting and Mr. O’Gorman seconded the
motion. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

Bl

Bill Deville

Chief Executive Officer

Charles Odimgbe
Deputy Chief Executive
Officer

Dwana Williams
Chief Operations Officer

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

EXECUTIVE REPORT
August 2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

AGENCY UPDATES: Bill Deville

e CATS has contracted with Pearlina Thomas of PLACEenterprise, LLC, to serve
as the Interim CAQ with the retirement of Darrell Brown.

e DCEO Charles “Mr. 0" Odimgbe has been meeting with all the departments
and working on department goals, expectations, etc.

e The agency had its Triennial Review August 7" and 8". A summary of the
review and follow up process will be provided to the Board once it has been
received by CATS staff.

HUMAN RESOURCES: Jim Fight

e CATS s interviewing 41 candidates for employment in various departments.

e A New Hire Orientation for bus operators has been scheduled for August 26,
2019.

o We have completed interviews for the Comptroller position and should have a
candidate identified by the August board meeting.

e Training modules are being introduced to all departments and the initial effort
will be tailored to the supervision for the agency.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams
e We currently have 126 active operators working. The department lost
approximately 5 operators to termination and FMLA. We have 10 operators in
training and just hired approximately 20 more bus operators to begin training
August 26, 2019.
e See attached Performance Measures.

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville
e CATSis planning a couple of press events to occur by October to announce
the launch of the three easily identifiable and “branded” electric buses into
fixed-route service on a temporary basis.

o Initially the electric buses will be briefly assigned to various routes in
all service areas as an introduction to the general public.
Subsequently, they will settle on Route 41 — Plank Road in morning
and afternoon peak, rush hour service until the BRT project is
complete and revenue service is initiated.

o The first electric bus press event is scheduled for September 16, 2019
at the CATS Terminal. More information regarding this event will be
forthcoming from the Communications Department.

e CATS is also preparing another press event for late September to October,
depending on the weather, for the grand opening of the Cortana Transit
Service Hub/Center.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

B

brcats.com

CHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

e CATS is preparing to conduct stakeholder/non-rider surveys that will be
administered by the ETC Institute, a group that performs the customer
satisfaction survey. This information will be used by multiple departments in
the agency in preparation for our community outreach campaign.

e The Microtransit Pilot Program work continues and CATS hopes to have an
RFP ready for solicitation by September, 2019, whereby two North Baton
Rouge zones will be merged for a service area in North Baton Rouge that
includes the Airport, Southern University, and the city of Baker; we will have a
timeline of this pilot program for the board at the September board meeting.

e CATS Paratransit “on demand” Uber/Lyft like service pilot program is being
reviewed for possible introduction to Baton Rouge later this year; Operations
and Business Development leadership made a site visit to Dallas to learn how
the project works for them with MV.

PLANNING AND PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT:
e CATS received a Low-No grant award notice for $2.6 million for the purchase
of three more electric buses from its May 2019 application.
e On August 7-8, 2019 CATS staff participated in the FTA Triennial Review. CATS
is responding to open items prior to the draft report in order to address and
close items. '

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:

CATS staff provided an overview of BRT activity for the past year at the request of FTA
Region VI. The NEPA/Preliminary Engineering project has been authorized and awaits
notice to proceed.

FTA provided recommendations for the BRT projects and suggested using the
preliminary design from the NEP /preliminary design phase to guide other design
firms under contract for Architectural & Engineering services.

FACILITIES PLANNING: Bill Deville
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:

e Legal counsel indicated that LSU and the Division of Administration have
completed the process of notifying the previous owner(s) of the intent to sell
the property. The title search is underway and closing is anticipated shortly.

o Staffis prepared to commence the RFP process upon execution of the
purchase agreement.

East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:
e Construction is underway at the Cortana Transit Center and the passenger
loading area is also proceeding.
e Inclement weather has caused some minor delays but construction continues
at the site.
e Transit furnishings including benches, bike racks, light fixtures, and trash bins
are arriving and their installation will begin shortly.



2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

R

brcats.com

CATS

CAPRITRL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

Weather permitting, the site will commence revenue service in September.

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:
Plank Road BRT, Phase One:

The Plank BRT Phase One project’s final engineering is on hold until the
completion of the NEPA process and receiving environmental approval for the
entire Plank Road BRT and Plank-Nicholson BRT projects. HNTB is the
consultant on record and slated to complete the environmental and NEPA
process.

Plank-Nicholson BRT, Phase II:

The Plank-Nicholson BRT project will pursue funding under the BUILD grant
application. HNTB has prepared the grant documentation and submitted the
grant application on July 15™,

2250 Florida Boulevard Facility Improvements:

With the support of the Department of Public Works, management is
undertaking a series of improvements at the 2250 location, including critical
paving repairs and the construction of two temporary parking lots.

o DPW will provide all required materials and labor, and CATS will cover
the costs.

o These improvements are necessary and overdue given the
deteriorating conditions of the pavement at the bus terminal area as
well as the main parking lot.

o Management has identified two City-Parish controlled properties that
can provide nearly 50 additional parking spaces.

Deputy CEQ Charles Odimgbe has taken the lead in having the facility at 2250
cleaned and freshened; this is one of a number of initiatives being undertaken
by Mr. Odimgbe.

o This is will occur for both the interior and exterior of the facility and
will work in conjunction with the rebranding efforts.

o This is an important step in our efforts to let both our employees and
the community know that we take pride in not only the work we do
but also where we do it.



9/%'€0T

Y00 | £T9'€TT

L¥9°70C

G8Y'ETT

€91°12¢

ESY'TTT

6107 =

| LT9°€0T

€2091C

c19'sy

99¢'8TT

167412

£96'STT

vOv'TIT | €99°€TT

Tv7'81e

YTETET

160°61¢

7559T¢

8107 m

2

"AON

R0

"1das

‘Bny

Anr

aunf Aey

|Lidy

"IN

‘qe4

uer

00005

000001

000°0ST

000002

diysiapry

000°0S¢

— 00000

WAISAS LIS 30 HIkD

0.6]




sdois sng waisAs (0103 3yl Jo %8/ 9 1uasaIdal Y21ym syu1odalil pajnpayas 1o painspaw si 2aupwiIofiad awr-uQ (310N
BIUBLLIOLIRd BWI]-UQ %08 1981e],

%95°L9

%Lt°99

%16°€9

%61°19

%89°09

%9¢°£9

%16°L9

610Z =

%0799

%899

%E'99

%6°L9

%T L9

%0°69

%C’89

%8°L9

% L9

%98°59

%8€°99

%TL99

810CH

23ag

*AON

‘PO

"ydas

“Bny

Ainr

aunf

Aepy

Jdy

yase

‘qa4

‘uer

9JUBWIOIRd 3WIl-UQ

%00°0

%00°0T
%00°0¢
%00°0€
%000
%0005
%0009
%00°0L
%00°08
%0006

%00°001

(U3LSAS LSNHHL H3HH HLcHD

5163




s3uipieog 000°00T Jad sjulejdwo) Jswolsn) gz ueys ssaf 1aie 3

_ 9°1S €SP 9°veE (444 T'LS L'TE 99 |6T0CHE

LTV €L €'8E 99¢ 8'0¢€ 've 8°LE T°€e 6°¢C 6°ST L°ET 6'TE |8T0ZH

28g *AON ‘120 -das *Sny Anr aunr Aepy jady yaiep ‘gad ‘uer

0T

0c

o€

ot

0s

EEEEN s — SEFIIIP S 09

UBISAS LGN b3 k]

s3uipieog 000°00T 42d siulejdwo) Jowolsn) m._.iu




L'6T¥'T | SL688 | ST'86F | Sv/8 €119 SE00¢ 9'ELT sduL sng pa||oued 610z
S8¢ 7'6EE 9te 9T1¢ ¥9¢ 76T €6¢ T0¢C €6 99 €01 S'6CC sdli] sng pa||soued 810¢
0486 06'86 06786 0€°66 0Z°66 0t"66 01°66 0t°66 0.°66 0866 0€'66 0€°66 PejeIBiO
8 8 sduiL sng Pajnpays 4o % 8T0Z m
€L°56 0€’L6 05'86 0S'L6 05'86 0g'66 0t'66 pelsizye
sdiL sng pa|npayas Jo % 6T0Z W
el=Tq| ‘AON 10 -1dag ‘3ny Anr aunr Aey ady 1BIA| EE| ‘uer
000
000t
00°0¢
nv)
. o
oooe &
[y
=]
oy &
00°0t -
o
00'0s 2.
I—
=
k=]
0009 w
@]
L]
ooos 3
(gl
8
00708
00°06
00°00T

6T0Z-810¢ paiesadQ sdui] 9

S160




S3|IIN 000°00T 124 SIUSPIIIY B|qeIusnald 'z 1951el,

SOIIINl 000°00T 42d sjuapiddy 3|qejuanaid

T €20 0T 0z LT g's v'T  [eT0Z = |
6'T £ €1 81 9T LT LT 91 L0 8I0Z m _
-1des 3ny Anr aunf Aepy judy
= 0
T
4
€
14
S
. I S — I S e e 9
S e — — - S—— o i TS i m— = — — S—— — | h
W3LSAS LIShEHL b3k ML)

5.16J




| | OET9  SYW6 (6L €8SL | SW'y | T6/T | 06T SIed peoy 10g SO Ueaw 6Tz
8LE'y 1¥E's 1/6°S _ T/87 €8s 8799 | 89L°9 652'L i WI'9 | STI'6 | SI80T | TIS'Y |SI/e) Peoy 1ag SajilAl UeS 8TOT W |
23Q "AON ‘10 _ 1dag Bny Anr aunf Aepy [dy W OET]

‘Je "uef

0007

0007

0009

[r——— . 0008

00007

W3LSAS LISNBHL 5384 HLdH]

00071 mHEU
S||eJ peoy uaamiag SafiA ueap




Capital Area Transit System

Balance Sheet

July, 2019
713112019  7/31/2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,100,216 5,024,928
Accounts Receivable 568,607 305,075
Property Tax Receivable 17,300,802 17,291,859
Due from Governments 3,081,675 908,194
Notes Receivable 0 0
Interest and Dividends Receivable ] 0
Tnventory 130,381 617,159
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 9,792 233,056
Total Current Assets: 26,191,474 24,380,272
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 695,900 694,618
Total Restricted Assets: 695,900 694,618
Investments 0 0
Net Pension Asset, Long-Term 1,466,268 490,522
Equipment, Net 26,437,548 | 20,421,136
Total Assets 54,791,190 | 45,986,548
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Fxpenses 5,796,163 793,842
Accrued Payroll and Tax Liabilities 318,572 (526,870)
Accrued Interest (Bus Lease) ) (0)
Note Payable 0 0
Accrued Compensated Absences 424,440 142,274
Claims Payable and Related Liabilities 855,488 883,056
Capital Lease Payable 220,482 (328,137)
Deferred Revenue (Grants/Prop Tax) (00 5,232,785
Other Current Liabilities 0 0
Total Current Liabilities 7,615,145 6,196,951
Long-Term Liabilities
Note Payable, Less Current Portion 0 0
Accrued Compensated Abcenses, Less Current Portion 0 206,320
Capital Lease Payable, Less Current Portion 2,788,983 3,938,590
Estimated Liabilities 3,249,053 1,192,231
Total Long-Term Liabilities 6,038,036 5,397,141
Total Liabilities 13,653,181 | 11,594,092
Net Assets:
Tnvestments in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 23,428,083 16,810,683
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted 17,709,926 17,581,773
Total Net Assets: 41,138,009 | 34,392,456
Total Liabilities And Net Assets 54,791,190 | 45,986,548




Capital Area Transit System

Page 1
Statement of Operating Budget vs. Actual )
For the Period Ended July, 2019
Current Month Year to Date
2019 Approved
Budget Actual Var. Amount Budget Actual Var. Amount Annual Budget
Operating Expenses
Labor $907,132 $770,781 $136,351 $6,349,924 $5.688,837 $661,086 $10,885,584
Fringe Benefits $540,182 $586,341 ($46,160) $3,781,271 $3,912,335 ($131,064) $6,482,179
Total Labor and Fringe Benefits $1,447,314 §1,357,123 $90,191 §10,131,195 $9,601,173 $530,022 §17,367,763
Casualty and Liability $140,540 $370,891 ($230,351) $983,779 $1,013,929 ($30,150) $1,686,478
Services $149,226 $240,084 ($90,858) $1,044,580 $1,365,045 ($320,465) $1,790,709
Purchased Transportation $187,500 $188,914 ($1,414) $1,312,500 $1,392,240 ($79,740) $2,250,000
Materials & Supplies $227.770 $427,039 ($199,269) $1,594,389 $2,488.684 ($894.295) $2,733,238
Utilities $22,667 $14.896 $7,771 $158,667 $102,241 $56,426 $272,000
Miscellaneous Expenses $61.650 $78.424 ($16,774) $431,549 $590,996 ($159,446) $739,799
Leases and Rentals $13,333 $5,094 $8,240 $93,333 $45,646 $47,687 $160,000
Total Operating Expenses §2,249,999 $2,682,464 (5432,465)] | $15,749,992 | $16,599,953 (8849,961) $26,999,987
Operating Revenues
Passenger Paid Fares $141,803 $133.436 ($8,366) $992,618 $977,673 ($14,944) $1,701,630
Special Transit Fares (Contract) $25,943 $18,861 ($7,082) $181,603 $139,593 ($42,010) $311,319
ADA/Paratransit Revenue $7.667 $10,373 $2,707 $53,667 $49,793 (83.874) $92.000
Advertising Revenue $61,054 $42,100 ($18,954) $427,377 $370,501 ($56,876) $732,647
Interest Income $13.515 $11,610 ($1,905) $94,607 $125,326 $30,719 $162,183
Other Agency Revenue $14,947 $376 ($14,571) $104,630 $129,323 $24,692 $179.366
Total Operating Revenues §264,929 $216,758 ($48,171) $1,854,501 $1,792,208 (862,293) §3,179,145
Operating Shortfall/Subsidy Requiredl ($1,985,070) (SZ,465,706)| (S480,636)| | ($13,895,491) (Sl4,807,745)| (8912,254) (523,820,842)
Federal, State & Local Subsidies)
Non Federal Revenue
Hotel/Motel Tax $104,235 $0 ($104,235) §729,647 $918.200 $188,554 $1,250,823
Parish Transportation Fund $45,833 $0 ($45,833) $320,833 $275,000 ($45,833) $550,000
Property Tax Revenue $1,467,373 $1,467,373 $0 $10,271,608 [ $10,271,608 50 $17,608,470
Total Non Federal Subsidies $1,617,441 $1,467,373 ($150,069)] | $11,322,087 | $11,464,808 $142,720 $19,409,293
Federal Operating Subsidies
FTA - Preventive Maintenance $348.879 $348,879.08 $0 $2,442,154 $5,350,104 $2,907,950 $4,186,549
FTA - Planning $18,750 $18.,750 $0 §131,250 $131,250 $0 $225,000
Total Federal Subsidies $367,629 $367,629 S0 $2,573,404 $5,481,354 $2,907,950 §4,411,549
Total Operating Subsidies $1,985,070 $1,835,002 ($150,069)] | $13,895,491| 516,946,161 $3,050,670 §23,820,842
Net Operations Balance +/- S0 (5630,705) | r 50 $2,138,417 50




CATS

CAPITAL ARER TARANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE

FINANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
AUGUST 15, 2019
BREC Room 1809
6201 Florida Boulevard

MINUTES
The Finance and Executive Committee met on Thursday, August 15, 2019, at 10:30
a.m. Present at the meeting were members Mark Bellue, Erika Green, Kahli
Cohran, Antoinette Pierre, and Jim Brandt. Also present were Bill Deville, Charles
Odimgbe, Pearlina Thomas, Creighton Abadie, and members of CATS staff.
l Call to order and establishment of quorum
Mr. Bellue welcomed those assembled.
Il President’s Announcements
Mr. Bellue noted that he had no announcements.
Mr. Deville introduced Mr. Charles Odimgbe and Ms. Pearlina Thomas. He
noted that Mr. Odimgbe has a reputation in the transit industry as a
“turnaround man” and that he has already identified several key areas that
can be improved. Ms. Pearlina Thomas is with the agency on an interim
basis as the Chief Administrative Officer and is working to fill the vacancy
left by Darrell Brown’s departure. She has experience in the public sector
and with policy, programs, and implementation.

M. Safety Moment

Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment that centered on the importance of
all employees being responsible for safety.

IV. Executive Report and Financials



Mr. Deville provided several agency updates and noted that Mr. Odimghe
has been meeting with all the department heads and working on
department %oals, expectations, etc. The agency had its Triennial Review
on August 7" and 8™ and a summary of the review and follow up process
will be provided to the board members once it has been reviewed by CATS
staff. He reiterated that Ms. Thomas has joined the agency on an interim
basis and that she will be working with Risk Management, Procurement,
DBE, and Civil Rights. She has a background that includes organizational
structure, policy development, and policy programs.

Mr. Fight shared that the agency is interviewing 41 candidates for
employment in various departments. A new hire orientation for bus
operators has been scheduled for August 26™. Training modules are being
introduced to all departments and the initial effort will be tailored to the
supervision for the agency.

Mr. Fight noted that interviews have concluded for the Comptroller position
and the agency extended an offer to an individual and that individual
accepted the offer. He should begin his full-time work on September 3™,

Ms. Williams noted that there are currently 126 active operators. The
department lost five operators to termination and FMLA. There are ten
operators in training and approximately 20 more have been hired to begin
training on August 26",

There was discussion of the status of operators, operator hiring, and
training to get operators into service. It was noted that 10 of the 17 trainees
from the last training class are still active and the goal is to have a total
operator count of 169 in order to have a fully completed extra board.

It currently takes eight to twelve weeks for a trainee to complete training;
the longer training is for those who do not currently have a Commercial
Driver’s License with the proper endorsement.

Ms. Williams let the committee know that ridership for July was 203,476
and the on-time performance was 67.56%. There were 51.6 customer
complaints per 100,000 boardings in July and there were 1,419 cancelled
trips for the month. There were 1.1 preventable accidents per 100,000 miles
in July and 6,130 mean miles between road calls.

There was considerable discussion concerning the number of trip
cancellations for the month. Mr. Odimgbe assured the members that he is
working to alleviate the issues.

Mr. Deville noted that CATS is planning several press events to occur by
the end of October to announce the launch of three electric buses into



fixed-route service on a temporary basis and to announce the grand
opening of the Cortana Transit Center.

CATS is preparing to conduct stakeholder/non-rider surveys that will be
administered by ETC Institute. This information will be used by multiple
departments in preparation for our community outreach campaign.

Mr. Rose noted that CATS received a Lo-No grant award notice for $2.6
million for the purchase of three more electric buses from its May 2019
application,

CATS had its triennial review on August 7t" and 8" and CATS is responding
to open items prior to the draft report.

It was noted that CATS management, with the support of the Department of
Public Works, is undertaking a series of improvements at the 2250 location.
These include critical paving repairs and the construction of two temporary
parking lots. DPW will provide all reqmred materials and labor, and CATS
will cover the costs.

Mr. Deville presented the July financials and noted that the total current
assets as of July 31, 2019 are $26,191,474. The total assets are $54,791,190.
The total current liabilities are $7,615,145 and the total liabilities are
$13,653,181.

The operating expenses as of July 31, 2019 are $2,682,464.

The total CATS-generate operating revenues as of July 31, 2019 are
$216,758. The total non-federal subsidies are $1,467,373 and the total
federal subsidies are $367,629. The total operating subsidies are
$1,835,002.

Communications Update

Ms. Sevier shared an overview of the last ten months of creative work
completed by the Communications Department and its strategic creative
partner Rockit Science. She noted that Rockit has worked on various tasks
with the Department and the agency. Some of the projects include photos
and videos of vehicles and facilities, headshots for the website, internal
campaigns, and social media campaigns. There was considerable work
done with the Service Improvement Plan in February that included shelter
and bus ads, atlases, and route schedules.

Ms. Sevier shared that the social media engagement following grew 300%
over the last year and the reach has expended exponentially.



VL.

Ms. McNaylor informed the committee that the Department has been
working with Rockit and there have been several meetings with board
members as well as the executive staff to develop an education outreach
plan. This will take effect in the coming month and will be a targeted effort

- to educate the community concerning the work done by the agency and the

services that are provided.

Recommend authorization to add Charles Odimgbe as signatory on behalf
of CATS for all Whithey/Hancock Bank accounts and recommend
authorization for the CEO to execute all documents required by
Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes

It was noted that this is a requirement of Whitney Bank and it is necessary
to have four authorized signatories as it is required to have two signatures
on CATS checks.

Mr. Brandt moved that the full board authorize the addition of Charles
Odimgbe as signatory on hehalf of CATS for all Whithey/Hancock Bank
accounts and that the full board authorize the CEQ to execute all
documents required by Whitney/Hancock Bank to effectuate these changes
and Mr. Cohran seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment
and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.



CHTS

CAPITAL AREAR TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
PLANNING COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
AUGUST 16, 2019
10:45 a.m.
6201 Florida Boulevard,
Room 1809
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70806

MINUTES

The Planning Committee met on Friday, August 16, 2019, at 10:30 a.m. Present at the
meeting were members Kevin O’Gorman, Mark Bellue, Kahli Cohran, and Laurence
Lambert. Also present were Bill Deville, Charles Odimgbe, members of CATS staff,
Bryan Jones of HNTB, and members of the public.

BRT update and next steps
a. NEPA and preliminary engineering

Mr. Bryan Jones updated the board and let them know that both the CATS Board
and the Metro Council approved the use of additional funds for the Plank-
Nicholson BRT Corridor. The final process is going through several levels of
approval at the City-Parish and will be completed by the Parish Attorney. HNTB
is awaiting a Notice to Proceed from the City-Parish and hopes to be proceeding
by early- to mid-September.

It was noted that CATS expects to have a categorical exclusion within
approximately ninety days.

There was discussion of the conceptual engineering that must also occur and it
was noted that it is critical that the Plank and Plank-Nicholson projects work in
concert and that both SJB and HNTB have the same information.

Mr. Jones noted that he was not positive when the BUILD application would be
reviewed, but he shared that nearly 50 letters of support were submitted with the
grant.

Planning Department updates
a. Lo-No grant award for three electric buses



V.

Mr. Rose let the committee know that CATS was awarded $2.5 million in grant
funds to purchase three additional electric buses. These will be purchased from
the existing contract with BYD that had an original allotment of nine buses. He
noted that he met with CRPC and had the item added to the TIP for the August
meeting. It was noted that the buses would be available in approximately 15-18
months from the order date.

There was discussion of potential CMAQ funds identified by CRPC that could
possibly be used to purchase the final three electric buses on the BYD contract.
This funding has not been secured and there is not timeline for this purchase to
this point.

Summary of July service change

It was noted that the changes implanted in July are being reviewed and that
there will be minor changes coming in the fall for the final run cut of the year.

There was discussion of the types of data collected, how it is collected, and how
it is analyzed. It was noted that the agency is perhaps not collecting the correct
data, which means it is not providing accurate information to the contractor to
build run cuts. There are currently no members on staff with the required
knowledge base to collect and analyze the data. It was noted that there would
likely need to be a consultant contracted to handle this portion of the
information.

Hubs update

Mr. Deville shared that the work at the Cortana Transit Center is progressing. Mr,
Baker provided photos of the work to this point and noted that the work should
be complete by October, weather permitting. Once the work is complete, there
will be a press event to announce the new site and begin revenue service.

Mr. Abadie shared that CATS is awaiting word from the title attorney for the
North Baton Rouge Transit Center site at the LSU property.

It was noted that CATS is seeking a location for a downtown transit center and it
in preliminary discussion with the Division of Administration regarding right-of-
way that could hold six to eight buses. The agency is in discussion with
Hollywood Casino regarding approximately one acre of land on the casino
property as well.

CATS is looking to partner with Our Lady of the Lake for a transit center at its
Children’s Hospital.

Mr. Deville noted that he has been in discussion with BREC to see if there are
partnership opportunities at any of its facilities.

Status of Two Year Capital Plan and Budget



It was noted that CATS staff is reworking the draft that was presented in
December 2018.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.



CAHTS

CARPITAL RREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
504/COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
AUGUST 14, 2019
Room 1809
6201 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES

The 504/Community Relations Committee met on Wednesday, August 14, 2019, at
10:30 a.m. Present at the meeting were Linda Perkins, Antoinette Pierre, Bill Deville,
Charles Odimgbe, Pearlina Thomas, Dwana Williams, Karen Denman, members of
CATS staff, and Bryan Basford of MV Transportation.

Introduction

Ms. Perkins welcomed those assembled and thanked them for coming.
MV Transportation Report -

Mr. Basford of MV Transportation noted that CATS On Demand had 8,066
scheduled trips in June. Of the scheduled trips, 7,416 were completed; 650 were
cancellations and 255 were no-shows. It was noted that MV is still working with
several vans being down long-term.

Mr. Basford noted that 49% of the trips were subscription and 51% were demand
trips.

Mr. Basford shared that there were zero valid complaints for the month.
Mr. Basford noted that the on-time performance for the month was 92.1%.
It was noted that there was one road call for the month.

There was discussion of the vehicle fleet and it was noted that there are typically
two to four “down” vehicles daily. Mr. Basford let the committee know that MV is
sending two of its vehicles to assist with the fleet so CATS Maintenance
Department can work to get vehicles completely repaired before putting them
back into service.



V.

There was a discussion concerning the procurement of new vehicles for the
paratransit fleet. Mr. Deville shared that CATS is working on both a microtransit
pilot project and a partnership with a TNC to provide additional paratransit
service trips. Both of these initiatives will ease the burden resulting from the
aged fleet.

Mr. Odimgbe shared that the Maintenance Department is ramping its efforts to
get the yehicles to the shop and fully repaired.

Mr. Basford let the committee know that the operators are fully staffed; there are
currently 32 operators, which provides for a full extra board.

Ms. Perkins shared that this would likely be Mr. Basford’s last committee
meeting as he has accepted another position within MV, Mr. Basford informed
the committee he would be moving to Canada to head a branch there. He will
continue to be available to CATS in the interim until a replacement is hired and
trained. Ms. Perkins thanked Mr. Basford for all his hard work and diligence to
get the service where it is now.

Certifications — Karen Denman

Ms. Denman shared the certification numbers for July for CATS On Demand.
There were 43 applications mailed in July; this does not account for the
applications received via other methods. Of those, 26 were certified, one was
temporary certifications and no one was deemed ineligible during the month.
There were three recertifications for the month.

Ms. Denman noted that she and Mr. Jimmy Thomas are making phone calls to
the clients who miss their certification appointments to see if they still wish to
apply for the service. This is done in an effort to ensure no one is kept from the
opportunity to utilize the service if they qualify.

There was discussion concerning the Medicaid reimbursement status and Mr.
Deville advised that there is no update and talks have stalled. He noted that
CATS has extended an offer to a candidate for the positon of Comptroller and
the person hired will be tasked with reopening those discussions.

Customer service — Angella Wynn and Dwana Williams

Ms. Wynn noted there were 88 total complaints received in July. There were 35
that required corrective action and there was one commendation for the month.

Ms. Wynn shared there were five complaints for being passed up, zero for
courtesy, and 30 for performance.

Ms. Wynn let the committee know that, in July, the Customer Care Department
fielded an average of 1,257 calls daily and customers were on hold an average of
23 seconds.



There was considerable discussion of the reason for the continued increase in
monthly complaints, It was noted that the performance complaints were
increasing and this has to be addressed.

Mr. Deville and Mr. Odimgbe let the committee know that CATS is continuing to
hire more operators and get them in training classes.

Discussion of operator training — Dwana Williams

Ms. Williams shared that training has been suspended due to the operator
shortage.

There was discussion of the importance of the training and that it be restarted
as soon as possible,

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.



puewaq % = uonduasqns % m

%0 850
%0T
%07 050
%0¢ -
%0t
%05 0S'T
%09 ) .
%0L €8'T ¢8'T 9L'T SLT ggp 0o’z
s rrars 05z
%06
ST Auananpoud (Hdd) 4noH Jad sia8uassed
%86 |E0D === 35EIUDIIDG BWI]-UQ M
6T-INr 6T-UNf 6T-ARIN 6T-1dy BT-1eI 6T-G24 5T-uer 8T-23Q 8T-NON 81120 gT-dag 8T-8ny 8T-Inf
B %0°GL
- %0°08
. %058

- %P8

%888 %006

%E'T6

%T°C6 %T'Z6

— %6'98  oeyg %608 —
%S'06

%9°E6 , a3
%L'v6 %976 %056

%086 —

%0°00T



SS¢ €E€C 6SZ ove LTC CEC 0TE 8¢ 80€ 99¢ 50¢€ £E6¢C Mmoys oN m
0s9 S0S 8¢9 0¢9 w9 149 859 89 0€9 CLS LT9 €E9 suofief|aaue) JsquinN =
9TL €798 8499 vLL T60L V99 T6SL €904 LELY Lv89 ¥SL9 6849 sdii) pajajdwo) m
9908 8116 TETL T9€E8 SELL PIEL 678 9¢6L SL9L S8LL 9891 STLL sdu] pajnpayis m

6T-Inf 6T-unr 61-Aeln 6T-1dy 6T-4BIN 6T-0=d 6T-uef 81-23Q 8T-NON 8T-120 81-3ny 8T-Inr

eL-Inr eT-unr 6T-AeN ET-4dy 6T-1en 6T-9=4 6T-uer 81224 ST-NON 81-120 8T-3ny 8T-INT
- - - O

o

000T

oooe

0oog

000F%

000S

0009

68 ! vs 0004

vIEL
gieg - - Degr- 8 cgrs  SL9L T6SL csir Tb

0008

9908
6728 198
9598 ET

8TT6

0006

0000T



6T 6T 8T 6T 6T 8T

6T-INM 6T-Unr -Aey GT-1dy -IBN GT-Q24 6T-UEr8T-230 -AON 8T-1908T-dasgr-8ny gT-|nf BT-INM 6T-Unr -Aenl 6T-4dy -JBN 6T-G94 GT-UE[ST-280 -AON RT-190 8T-das8T-8ny gT-|nf
: . _ 0 0 ]
0 0 T
Z z
¥
b
9
9
8
0T 8
T 0T
1T
€T €T €I L &
sjulejdwo) # slied peoy #
SHELIRIYAN |BIO] = SI3PIY |10 W
6T-INr 6T-unr BT-Ae 6T-1dy GI-1eN 6T-924 GT-uer 87-220 8T-AON 81-10 gT-dag 8T-8ny
e — e —_ _ e L - - — . e e — = — —p— e —— A - D
- 000T
0007
000€
000¥
: 0005
0009
g 0002
0008
0006

0000T



8L/EL/LL $8JINBS
‘suondo [emauail Jeak-auo panosddy UpNy |eulaixg
Z uim ‘0z0z ubnouy gLoz w Buipus sies Jepusied 104 pieog “Ainp 000°LSL% = uoisuad
‘81/0€/0L uo pasuado 44y "pieoyg |In} 0} 80w o} pascidde SL/LE/EL uloos'6LL$ (8L0z IAD 2 S1VI)
saniwwoD I%4 — 8L/8/LL paaoidde pieog - 8L/EL/LL Buipua 1oenUOD Bulsixa 10 asealou| S1vD 10} J0BIUOD Sa2IAID
‘00071LGL$ JO [B30} MaU 1o} 00G'LES [eriul 0} 8L0Z IAD ue aoe|dal 0} S80INBS anoidde 00S'6LL$ 9||IAI9))aN B S90IMBS & S
S.LVO 40} 00S'61 1§ Ieuonippe pancidde pieog — 6L/9LIL NpNY [eussix3 Joj d-4y 0} pieog Lz0z 92 | 610g ver PPY) ejlemyepsod ddy npny
sliegy dion % ‘1| JUsiaindolg
‘suonjesadp  ‘Buisiueapy % Bunaxlep ‘poddns
UlWPY [eJAUSS) ‘B0UBUI{ SB UoNS ‘SlyYD J0) S89IAI8S
spnjoul 0} s8OS BL/EL/Z SNSgeM S1VD Uo pajsod
pue panquIsIp DAY — 61/8/Z "SIVIAISS [[BD-UO JRY UOU 10}
ddd enssial 0} S1YD "Pa||8ouUed sl DAY — 6L/7LIE BL/9L/S 600-s@2inag|eD
uo anp sjesodoid "wdz 18 61// 1/F UO pjdy 8q 0} 82uaJajuod -U0-610Z
|esodoid-ald s801naS |[BD-UQ J0j Palolos d4Y — 6L/8Z/E 610¢/82/E g
‘pauado Apignd s|esodold — 6L/9L/S "Si@doed jno puey uo S92IAISS ||B2-UO JRY agl ddy sedlAleg
3 5s8004d SSNOSIP 0} DFd YIIM 18W JUBWSIND0I - BL/Z[L | -UOU IO d4 Panssi S1VD asgL agL agL 1509 xoiddy asit Bupnsuon 11IeD-U0
*0}8 ‘saulyoew
1930 pue sSysop ‘spiejjog Ajes ‘Bunybl ‘sejoeydadal
ysel} ‘syoes ayig ‘senioey JebBusssed pasopus ‘sbunogj
sJaaup ‘saunjonss Adoueo ‘sAeq Bupjped sng sinjes) L0EL# ¥d
0] "BUO SI IBUSD JISUBI] YN SI9UM ‘SI3JUSD I8jSUB] 18)UsD) JISuBl | oG fiD usuell HaN
snq Jofew + Jo sauas e jo juswdojaasp ay) ayepapun o} | abnoy uojeg YUON au} 1o} agl ubisaq S382IAISS
w4 Juswoabeuey s1vQ Jad awy sy 18 pjoy uQ — 6L/Ly | sedoies ubisag 10) DAY agL gl agL 150D xouddy agl I3Y ubisaqg Y
‘suonjeoloads |eoluyos) ayy Bupesw Ul Jeppiq aalsucdsal <00
1samo| ey} Buulwelsp Ul SpIg UONONASUOD BU) UM _uBisagsaniuaLY
S1VvD ISISSe os[e |m Jueynsuoo ubisaq "0j@ ‘sedeospueT -61L0Z D4
‘SYSOI 'SISHBUS SpNoul [IIM CBL/LL/P U0 WEQD:0L 1 PEBH Hd
anp sjesodold "paloljos Sem D4 — 6L/8Z/E "000°081$ 10} Aepy ur premy dinb3 pajejey g
Bunaaw pieog L0z SUNr a8y} 1B pJEME UEB PUSLLLIOIA] pue juswdinbg pejejey JoBIUOD 2IN}a3)Yyoay saomag Saljuawy jisuel|
sjesodoid pajenjeas D34 Pue ‘JUBWSINJ0I] AQ PaAIBoal | pue sepuaWy JISuel] Joj panoiddy 000'081% adeospuen abesg SadIARg
alem sipsodold — 6L/LLY PeAoidde pieog - 6L/SLIS | S80S ubiseq Jo) DY pieog QgL sl 1500 xo1ddy yorsy EVE) ubisaQg I8V
'81/62/8 :9)eq Buiuad(Q |esodold ‘aHSqam GLI# ¥d "pAIg
S1yD uo pojsod ‘ISi| JOPUSA O} JUSS UOREDYNOU pue eld 2 Py jueld
pasieApe sl D4y MaN — 81/z/g ‘Buiobuo s suonen|end — SaNIIOB) JISUE mau (ow g1) (ow g1) Suonels I1yg
8L/0L/0L "ErS WOl GG'bHG'ZZES JO JUNOLE BY) Ul 180 [BUY | SpNjoUl O} "PAIG Bl4 % PY 8LIEL/LL agl aglL — S9IIAID
pan@oal S1vD — 8L/SZ/0L "PIe0g [N} O} 8A0W 0} paroidde | yue|d UO SUONEIS | Mg JO) panolddy @leg 81eqg 000'c2e$ o ubisaq 2 S
@8wwo] 94 — g1/8/LL paroidde pieog - gL/gl/LL | ssowag ubisaq Jo) DY pJeog pejewnsy | pejewnsz | 1soQ xoiddy | ‘dnols drsg agy ubiseg 33V
o]
02/62/2 NI} femaual
9L/11/8 10BQUOD Bunjoag (swielo dwon M8 GEI sng
JO |emsusl psaocidde pieog S1vD — 9L/0E/ "Pazileuly | siaxiop pue Aipqer] jesi Seones mEou 19410/
[EMaual JOBRIUOD — QL/G/6 [EMBUB] LWOW Q B oq | ‘SuonebisaAul ‘S8dines 0z/62/Z 0z/ziz N | WIELD Jaisnipy 2 Aujger]
[Im 10BU09 SIU} ‘JabBeuel Joalold Jad — LL/LE/L “pancidde wiejn Jojsnipy Joj ubnouyy 61/L/¢ popad dnoin ) umw__._.m:w_
3%4 — L1/0L/8 - panoiddy pieog — /1/GL/g ‘pencidde | poenuo9 sesf g jewiblio) |[emauay m_mmhmc_mﬂmﬂ uswabeuepy swie|n
384 ~ 8L/SL/Z ‘pancidde pieog — 8L/0Z/Z JedA Buo 10} | 61/82/Z — 8L/L/E J0 pouad panoiddy 6L/L/E patepdn SWIE ddy 2
panssi 10BJjU0D MaN — 81/L/E "panoidde pieog — 6L/SL/L |emausl panciddy pieog pieog 0zZ/62/2 J[emauay 0} Jajey umouig ERIINELS hmuws_—u<
\'4
SJUBWIWOY | SIION papiAoid panoiddy ajeq ajeq Juy aweN adA ] uondiiasag
jonpoud [S92IAIaS pieog pug Hels JOpUap 1uon 99IA138

syjuow ¢ 03 | ulyyim uonoy pleog Buipuad sjoslold = an|g

_ mou [enociddy pieog spasu j Wia)| UOIIOY = MO||DA

| 6L0z ‘0z 3snbny

pieog S1VvJ 1o} buisi juswainsoid S1VI




‘Sue|d JusLsanuy|
Juswaaoidw)| [eyde)d

pue aifizjens 1y ul pauysp
se sannoalqo pue sjeob
‘suocepuawwosal Juawa|dwi

0] JJElS aAlN2axa pue H.C@Ewmmtﬂs_
O30 YUM 3IOM pUE '9]EPIPUED
payilenb e yum Aouesea Joiusg S1VI
030 findag S0 Bully yum 2516102 0} JoSIApY
1SISSe 'sannp aoueUaUleW
pue Buneisdo Aep-0j-Aep On_cwwumhycoo mﬁo_um._mao
0 uswabeuew pue whisiano mrn‘.m\_,\mf (WN) 977 loluag g
: ul 3sisse ‘uonduosap qol
salysnpu| 8By maN 00D Mau o Juswdojaasp Yyim panoidde ‘sausnpu] a01n8g 030 >a:n_00
yim joeljuod mau siyj pasosdde pleog — 6L/12/S S1V9 ISISSE 0} JuBynsuoD pieog BL/ILETL B9 aby maN ynsuoD Bunoy
a
‘slequisw D3d aul Aq
pejosjes se paymisul 913 Buipuawwosss OID S1VYD O . [EMBUBI BUO YJim
18N18| pJeme 1o} UoNEpUSLILLIOal U} paledald Juswainoold JaNe| Mausl 0) | §1Zzes ppe |lemaual 01893 61/0€/ S1 81ep pu3
gL/ELy  '8L0Z ‘9l Mdy uo joejuod | paAoidde UONBPUBWIWIOIRI OTD 0} | PUB JDBAIUOD J0BNUOD — sAaning
pieog S1VD ‘Spuny 210W 10) SHSE} |BUORIPPE UM [BMBUS) 1919y 'SlE'€0L$ JO 1509 |emaual 1eak aup 10} [EMBUS1 0} uonoR)SIES
anoidde pue msinal 0} J94 GL/LLIF "SHSE) pappe .o} |E10} pamaual B Je Jesk paaoidde GLZ'ZES PPY) a1msu| somuag . .
Junowe |BuOHIPpE/M [EMBUS) panoidde pieog — 6LIOLIY e @0IM} sAaaIns pleog pieog 0Z/0E/¥ BL/L/S SIE'E0LS 213 unsuoy Jauioisny
malney 1ybisienQ Jo) 158'17$ MmNy
S0UB)SISSY MBIABY-1S0d 1928102 wybisien0
‘woddng uonoy aAdalo) | Od 10BHjUOD aAIsuayalidwo)
‘leacidde O30 104 PIOYSBIYY BUY UIYIM '$)Se) 8pnoul 0} 610z UBSIUAA [ V.14 6L0ZAL)
SEM UDIUM ‘/G8'/P$ 1O} GL/G/Z UO pajniaxe SEm JOBIJUOD |eluuaiu ] v.14 Buiwoodn 6LIL2IS 1SN 0] aoue)sISSY
[euiBllO "gL/0L/8 'BFE‘PPLS IO JUNOWE JOBIUOD [BJO} B JO uone.ledaid ypm paaoidde Z6v'968 ppy) | S°OIEIDOSSY 218G .
1o} 26%'96$ 4O spuny |euonippe parosdde pieog — 6L/12/S | S1VD 1sISse 0} Juejnsuo) pieog GL/LE/B 8LIFTITL 6PETPLS 8 Hop3ld }nsuo) muu_._m__o_—‘cnvo
*18U00S 10 SABp (g 1X8u ay) UIylim
o spiq ay) aaey o} Buidoy ale apn “spuny [eiopa
Buisn ‘siaysem snqg gz Joj ‘eje|dwion jsowle ‘payelp
Buieq sI 911 — 61/8/2 "IN0 puas pue azieuy o} —
uswaIndoid 1o} pamaiaal Bulag g | 1o yelp |euld — ]
SBU0 MaU LM aoejdel 0} 82130
61/ wdg 18 61/62/G :81eq Buiuedo pig “payoljos Pl ST et post o
gll — 62/ ‘Pamelrel Juaweindold Buluedo 0] JOpUB/\ "SIBUSEM |  GL0Z/9L/L 80UENSS| 90z L# ¥d
piq 1e peas Apliand spig — 61/61/9 “AINr Ul piq 1s8mo snq (z) om] JoJ spIg paaciddy 10 sy9aMm uoldNISUoY SIBUsep sng
0] 000°'686$ J0 pleme panoisdde pieog — GL/9L/L | paidlos SEY JUSWAINO0I pieog € UIYNAA 000'685% abe|iL qail uoloNJIISuU0D
'6L0¢ "9 UdJep "wdoo:e
®jed ang pig 718l JopusA 0} pajiews pue alisqam 0} (61/L2/€)
g1l peysod S1vD — 61/9/Z "D ‘dnoig uonanasuo) %mww_ﬂn_
Aley] ‘1applg  jsemo| 0} pleme  BuIpUSWIWODS! } SALON —
S1 pUe ‘SpIq © POAISIal S ‘pauado Spid — 200-A1D)sURI | BUBLIOD-6102# 6L/€C/B au 4o it tdl
b ! ! LVO P Pig = 61/9/€ g1l -Jeusd ySuell |  6LOZ/BLIE ‘Od/idIN | @ouenss| 971 ‘dnoig isjusy
panosddy 384 — 6LIVLIE "61/.2/E U0 N0 Jues QOd BUELIOD) JO UONONASU0D paaciddy wol 10 Syeam 000'525% uonoINIISuUoH Hsuel] BUBHOD
UM paaoold 0} 80)joN ‘pancidde pieog — 6L/6L/E 1o} g11 ‘Trg34 pieog sAep 08l € UM | 1800 xouddy A2y gl uoljonIIsuo)
)
SJUBWIWIOY | SBION papiAold panoiddy ajeq ajeq wy aweN adA) uonduoasaqg
19NpoJd /SaJIAIDS pieog pu3g ues Jopuap 1uon ERITVETS

syjuouw ¢ 0} | ulyim uonay pieog Buipuad sjosloid = anig

_ Mou |eAolddy pieog spaau | Waj| UOIDY = MO||DA

6L0Z ‘0Z }snbny

pieoq S1V9 10} bunsi juswainooid S1VI




144g
PY jue|d pue
119 BUBLIOD
10} saniuawy

‘sulelunoy Bunjuup ‘spiejjoq ‘sajoeidasal ysues|
ysel) ‘suonels Buibieyo ‘sisjueld  ‘syoes @yl SE 144 soiddng
Uons ‘SaluaWE J8ys-ayl-}Jo, apnjoul 0} mou payelp Buleq | py jueld PuE BuBHOD 000'0S5$ .
g1l - 6L/g/z juswabeuey S1vD Jod pjoy UQ — 6L/L/Y | 1O} SeRIUSWE 4BYS-SU-HO ag.l agl agl 150D xoiddy asi Ll 2 SIlelsieiN

N
0c/8L/8
610¢/61/¢ Uo -Aidde niyj s1 joenuon
pieoq S1vO Agq panoiddy 6L0Z/6L1 sajes Apnoy + : sP0IMag S99IAID
"1eak jse| woy sebueyd | joequog seoies [e6a panciddy Ze/8LIS 6L/ LIS saqieumey | 2 1dV Wil |eBe MBS
ON "10BNjU0D JBaA-¢ mou panoidde pieog — 61/61/Z 1eak (g) saly) pleog (mau) (mau) Ajuiuopy MET] a1peqy ynsuoD jeba
1
‘Aouaby auy
10 sjuawys|dwodoe ay)
‘S|EMBUSI YUOLW-3A|SM] () N0} | 2SEOMOYS pue 'Ajunwiwod
0} dn 1oy uondo 8y} Yim ‘SyuowW Z| 10} 000°SZ L$ 40 JunoLwe auy ul puelq aAnisod
2y} Ul 80 0} UOIIEPUSLILIODS. PIEME JOBAUOD UIM ‘80UsI0S | B UIBJUIBW PUB pINg ‘8seq
1Mooy si wuy Bupoos 1saubiH (D3d) eaniwwo) uonenead diysiapl g1D asealoul
lesodoild @8y Aq pajeneas alem  yoiym  sjesodoud 0} subisap pue saifajens S9DIAIBG
G paAl@oal S1yD 'Ssald AP@SAA 8Ul Ppue 8lBI0APY Bupaxew ‘pu; ‘swelboid gL/gL/6 Jeak Jad m.
ayl ul pasiuaape pue swuiy ubisep oiydelb zg 01 Juss sem Buneylew Bupnoaxa pue paaoiddy winwixe voulldg ubisag
UONENIIOS g4 UV - 8L/LZ/L "parciddy pieod - 81/8L/6 Bupeeso Ul S1v0 ISISSY pieog 61/05/6 8L/L/0L 000'5Z1$ ooy d=d alydess
3)
J0BNUOY) [EMBUSY buipusliwosay J8Ne] 030 88
"8L/LE/S MU} LL/L/Y 4O polad [emaual 1oy eaoiddy pleog
Spesu 10BNUOD — ZL/LZ/E 10BAUOD 10 [BMaUSl paaoidde
pileog -— LL/1LZ/e PElUOD [Emauldy Bulpuswwooay auljoseg)
BJe7 030 @89S BLILE/E ML 8L/ jo  pouad PUE [asalq
|[emausal Joj parciddy pieog — LL/0Z/E "@0USpUOdSELI0D 120z nJu} 40} 30eUOD
Ile uo paldod sem aseyand d-D 9yl pue oeneng siqeflere | pL/gL/g uo (6dd) "UCRENDIIOS
yim paubis pue pazjjeuy SEm 10BIUOD — 81/9Z/S "USUEd s|emausl oeljjenyg | [eb sad soud ystled n hm_oww,%_‘uw
AID Aq psaoidde ‘oesjjang Aq 1oenUOD paubisse sem ‘weysAs Buisuadsip 0Z/LE/E NIY JeaA auo 0} pJeme = XB) + 99} Ao ein LMML_ o <
IO PI2USUBy 1BUl UOHEJUNOU paAleday — §L/S/0L “pleog [eny ay ur e1edppied |emaual Jeak G/M 1JUOD psaoidde | wpe gE0'0 $ (oed]jang Aq J9REL -~ U_Ea
yolep o1 0B m sIyl "SIV PBUNOU pue Ieak auo o) o} Anua ajeiedss e 2UO §L/6LIE esk g Talilgle%s} + SIdO paubisse sem) M.FJOOMM % :M
pamausl sey ysied AlID — 61/8/Z ‘Panoiddy T4 — GLIPL/E | SE UODENDNOS [9N) pLOZ Ul | uo paroiddy | Juaund | NS 4-D | AJag oju o ysued 10 19889 P
N0 JUSS JOBJUOD [EMBUSY ‘panoidde pieog — BLGLIE | SLYD Papnioul usued A0 pieog 0Z/LE/E0 | +LILO/LL 2aud 110 PIRYsuep Ag gy |esald |end
1A 1ad ) = Jeak 1ad .

“/1L/€Z/Z UO WNPUBPPY BIA JN0 Sasuodsal Nmr.mw_\.mmmwmﬁzme%a z v m_muw%umv v202 (sesng BIII9 01)
no uwm /1/0z/¢ Aq ey enp seumbul /L/Z/E OB | gog'zLzbg 150D [BIOL 10D yBnouy) asey2Ing)
onp sjesodoid ‘suopnisul [eoueuy sdynw 0} pa)olos -pouad Jeak J Jano Aeg -sieak leuden sieaf J 1o}
d=¥ - 21/8/z sesng Bio 01 o} s1 Burueuld “feacidde oy "sasng BIO 01 ALZE J 1o} sasng a1qnd SIREL] RaN)
pieoq (Iny 0} arow o} wal pancidde 384 - LL/9L/E "SBSNG |  aoueu|q aSEYDING/ESES] panoidde j@saiq i BOLIBWY H adueulq sng
Biro 01 jo Bupueuy psaoidde pieog — LL/1Z/E sng |eyded pJeog ¥20Z 120 2102 1dv 0l ®dueuld jo sueg ddd Buroueui4

E|
SjUBWIWIOY | SBION papIAOId paroiddy ajeq ajeq Jwy aweN adA] uondiosag
}9Npold [S@2IAI8S pieog pug uels JOpusp 1uon ERITNETS

syjuow ¢ 03 | UIyym uonoy pieog Buipuad sposloid = an|g

_ Mmou |eaoiddy pieog spasu / Wa)| UOIJOY = MO||DA

| 610z ‘0z 1snbny

pleog S1V) 10} Bunisiq juswainoold S1VI




"BL/LE/L MU} 81/1/8 WOY SWAISAS £80 5058 e
VAV B OdV “TAV 4o} ebeisncd Auesem pue uoddns sAS VAV B OdV "INV el A ac.s_u,_mw, CERTTVETS
yoa) maual 0} |eaosdde pieoq Buipusd wsy - QLIZLIL 1o} abeianon QLILLIL 9 ‘SajuELEM pHELEM ‘poddng yojepoinoy
‘gL/LL/L uo panciddy pieog “0z/Le/2 UBnoiyy 1oERUOD | AuBLEBAA R SOUBUSIUIEIN poaoiddy "oddns yas) alemyos yoay
saoiAIes AJUBllEM mausy ‘6l/0zZ/8 U0 aacidde o} pieog ‘poddng yoa | pieog 6L/LE/L 8L/Li8 Jo 1eak BUO U21BNSINOY | .oy soimueg 2lemljos
‘6L/EL/8 ‘BN ISl| JopuaA 0} wego:oL
JUSS UONEJUNOU PUB 3}ISgem S1YD Uo pajsod ‘pasiuaApe | e gL/gL/g :ang siesodold d4y
Sl d4Y — 6L/92/9 '6L/82/8 :®1eA BNQ MON PaNIWAGns BIEMJOS dHT 610 ‘lle4 21eMyos sAs du3
suonsanb Auew o) sasuodsal S1yD Jo) awp alow — 2IEM}OS apIM-LUIS)SAS ul anoidde 2pIM
MO||2 PUE BJEP 8NP PUBjXe 0} Panss |# WNPUsppY — 6L/L/8 | 10} df¥ UB panss! S1vD 0} pJeog agl asi agl agl waishs alemjjos
-d4d @) Jo sjuewalinbal [eojuyoa) 8y} J9awW pap|wgns
siesodoid sy} )i Buuiwialap ul Apealb (D3d) aspiwwod
uoneneas |esodosd S1yD diey M SDUBISISSE  SIYL
‘JeW ale syjuswalnbal pue spssu uoneoypads |edluyos) wa)sAg
pPUB MOS SLV¥D ainsua 0} paaiadal siesodold ay) Jo majaal alemyos ucoan_m>wD
[E21UYD8} By} ul sjuswpedsq jusWSINd0Id pue 1| S1vD 81/91/8 paroidde 334 dy3 4o . Co_umo_"—_omn_m
1SISSE 0S[E ||IM ABU ] "d-H UE 10} UOIN|OS [BDIUYDS) SIBMUOS gLLzZe pleme [euy . ou] sAg du3
e 10} 508dg [EDIUYDR ] pue (AMOS) oM Jo edoog pajieiep B 8L/L2/8 poaciddy Buimoyjoy Buyinsuon S80IABg
dojaAap |iim JuBlNSUOD 8Yl “gL/LZ/g Uo parciddy pieog panoiddy pleog pieog sAep 0gl gLILI6 vi¥'v6% Joamu| dy 2JEMOS
‘UoBs SYUOW-Z | 10} Maua)
0} suondo z yim JDBHUOD JBBA-E "OU| ‘seoIeS AJunoag s|emaual S92IAISS
1asiap\ 0} papieme JOBHUOD AJUNOBS — 9L/GL/L UO pJeme "UONED0| "PAIE BPUO| L/EL/LL 1eaf-auo 1S00 [eNUUE | ‘DU| ‘S89IAIEG ._.m:
|jeuibuio paaouddy pieog "pieog [N} 0} arow o} paroidde 0622 SL1VD e saolnesg paaouddy 240l 000°LEZ% funosg s80IMI9g P 9
sepIWwWo) 394 — 81/8/LL paroidde pieog - 8LIEL/LL pieng Anoas - // ¥ pieog 6L/LEMRZL BLILIL “xouddy 19s19M dy Aunosg
S
"10]0BIJU0D S3DIAISS JIsuelieled S| yD) Se uoieyodsuel | (gzoz niyy s|emaual
AN 0] 10BIUOD JO PpIEME UE SPUBWIWOIB) S1YD .co_wmﬂwnﬁ_rm_ | | esuoo | ueskeuoz | 000°5L6°9% vav
‘s)nsas @epiWwWoy uoienieag |esodoid 8yl uo peseg AW VT IR leak g /M 19BIUOD unowe i SasIAID
Buneaw 3594 —gL/Z1/L ‘Bujesw pieog qad |aUN palsep 18pIAOId BOINIBS paacsdde lequajod) K 10BAUOD suedl. sao|nBg i
pieog — gL/9L/L "AIN 0} pieme panoidde pieog — gL/0z/z | JISUBI|-Bied pajoEluOD pieog LZI0SHY 8L/9/5 leaf ¢ AN = Hsueseied
d
029'ves
801049
'000°06$ J0 ploysaiy) 5,030 oljad 40}
BU} UILIM ‘0Z9‘PES 4O [BIO] B 10} 8910yD 0Njad O} PApIEME 1509 xouddy | (110 J030H)
aq |Im IO JOION DZTIES 90 IIM BLOZAD JO Japulews) ‘uopdo [emaual sUO Yjim 029°15% | @d10yg onad
10} 10EQUOD (0L9°9E$ O [EIO} B JB) PINy ISMEUXS [9SBIP | GL/LE/ZL  UBnoIy  sway BLILEIZ)
‘lo Buiqin} SINeIpAY Jof S1VD UNM SIOBNUOD AJUSLND | 9SBU} IO} PAUDIOS SEM g | yBnouuyy [an4 SeSaitit
oym ‘(000°SL$ JO [BIO} B JOj) Jend zanBiyy ©) pepieme | ue os ‘ezeaunuy 1o 10 | 610z ludy zonBip 1oy Uy
a0 M 9zZeayue By} 8Jaym ‘papieme ag O} |I0 Jojow | JoJojA Jo) soeld Ul 10BNUOD ul anoidde 1s00 |Bj01 | (ezeaujuy) pue
pue szeaynue 10} g1 | — 61/Z/p "percidde pieog — 6L/9L/F | OU SBY AjusLnd SIVD 0] pJeog 6LILEIZL 6LILIL xolddy | jang zanBiy a1l (103010) 110
0O
SjUSWILIOY | SBION papiAoid paAoiddy 3jeq 9jeq Uiy aweN adA ) uonduosaq
jonpold /Sa2IAIeg pieog pug uelg Jopuap JJuo9 RN ELS

syjuow ¢ 0} | UIym uonoy pieog Buipuad sjoaloid = an|g

_ Mou [eAolddy pieog spasu [ Wa}| UOIDY = MO[|DA

| 610z ‘0z 3snBny

pieogd S1VD Joj bugsiq Juswaindold S1VI




‘epusBe Bunaaw pleog 91/0Z/ZL U0 aq 0} pajnpayos si a|ge|iene
UONJEPUBWIWODaY plemy JoBIJUOD ,0F JaqwenoN Ag enp s|emaual oo T —
aq |m s|esodold ‘slasodoud |enualod aidipinw 0} payoIos 1ealk s8e.] BUnsoH [emaua) PElS
usaq sey d4¥ — 9L/0L/LL ‘Pan@dal siesodoid ¢ Buowe SaIAISS 8IBM)OS 9L/0ZiZL auo gZ/m snid 000'28% 6 a4y _._m_wwn_-wﬂ._
1sayBiy paioos oym ‘01607 JuseA0D 0} I94 AQ pancidde pue BunsoH sepnjoul panouddy sieak ¢ uBisagay 21007 S90S . o
plemy — 9L/5L/ZL "@NSgam mau paysune| — 10z Ainr - uBisa@-ey 21SgaM pieog 6L/LEZL LLILO/L0 sjewsy juajenod a)IsqaM a)Isqap
M
“Jaam Siu} J8e| JUss aq [|IM pue
Zl 10 peajsul sasng g jo aseyoind sy} 1os|jel 0} pabueyo
aq M "O°d 2y} weawsabeuew 1a4 -9L0z 02 Ul [eaocidde
pieoq souls Buipusd 'O'd :@1BPAN — ZL/Le/e (Ploy pIq 3y} Uo ya| 924'900°G$ pouad Atenyeg
uo) S8SNQ g 10} Od 8Nss! 0} 0J0 Wol Hd paroidde swewufissy | 07'92.900°G yluow g1 03 94
Bugiemy - ZL/LL/p Suluow 9| SI 8jep AssAlep gregssaigp | SR EA 8L0Z 980/AON
T : p LULVIL 0z0Z Ny (YA RAAFAN £ sinpayag Aienijag
ayl "O'd Buipuss siojeq way} woy ojul wy Ang JO yaam sieak G Jano sslUBWE uee
uo Buniepy 'sesng g Joj Bl 01 yeem Siyl panssi 9L/02/2L 8102 paiapio aq pappe + Amv sasng
aq |Im/"O'd @_{__U_{_mn_ = LULLL - b 19 01 Juas "'O°d “MMMMMMM M.__.. 29(/NON panssi| i MMMM% 95 aoud snqg Jad all asal
LL/12IL "9dueUSURIN S1VO AQ paAl®dal useq sAey Ob'Z96'190'SE 'O'd [BIOL panciddy ur Aanijep usag gioeseyung | 19S°IP B GE ¥2015 _ 1a
$9SNq Q |[B 1By} payljou SEem JUaWaIndold — GL/E/L B0 08/'LZHS ooud Jun sng pieog s8snq 8 sey '0'd J8PIO £ 2711 ‘Buio Buljicy SO[JIYSA
‘B119)01d pUE 14|14 MaN ‘TAE WO} SPIG £ PIAISISY e —_— suone;s
S1VO — LLIGLI0L "M3IA3) Jspun |}s 1 paA@dal spig uonels buibieyo oujoere
€IV — LLFL/LL ‘|encidde Joj pieoq [N} O} WY 9Y) aA0LW pleme Buibieya € yiejsul pue
0] pa1oA 394 ‘aAg Aq papiwgns piq aaisuodsal pue paoud 6102 jo 8jep ay) 8Uo pue snq suonels abue >.._mﬁm
1s9mO| DU} 0} S9SN 00} GE DUl03[e £ Jo aseyoind sy} 1o} ‘2z 984 Aq woly sieak aUO 10} 1509 BuiBleyo -] d
10B1JUOD JO pleme U pspuswwodal §1y) — Bunesw 394 aq 0] AleAllag | G XU au) H_c:.xoja« U_..;ow_m papusaix3/m
- 8L/ZL/L "sesnq ¢ loj gAd O} pieme paroidde pieog BLILIE loj pasn mmﬂ_ﬂwm m.__EmE (use)
- 8L/9L/L '6L/22/C Aq alep AisAlep yim sesng 08|13 ¢ Jo | suonels Buibieyo esnoy | uo panss| Od | 8q ued SuiBisun ; () sasng
18I0 BU} 0] QA O) PANIWANS "O’d — 8L/L/E "PEW 8Q UED -Ul € [[eysul pue abue: 8L/9L/L peRuoD aans o PUE Sesng
€p q 213093
wawAed aiojoq suswalnbal |4 Jad sjuswnoop pieme | AIs)Eq papusIXa/m 100} GE panoiddy £ 10} 30ug o1193|3 $ooIS .
-1sod uo Bunlep “paaiedsl Usag 8ABY S8SNQ ¢ IV — 6L/L/S | 'Sesng oudaje ¢ aseyoind pleog £2/91/10 81/91/10 pig [E101 € sesng Buliioy S32IYaA
A
020z ®unp ssasoid
"seoud swes 1e /1/1.£/8 zz/Le8 sk i e
NJU} JOBAUOD pUSIXa yBnouyy LULMB | jaq go0'00z8 FHEG E|SAL]
0} paalbe Jeshpoon s|lemausl niyj si SISt 1884 BUO Z /M
“ueuoIN (g) 3 Jeakpoos () Smmmmmmmmmmsmmsmmmmees Jeak Jeadpoog sbeiany 910z 0Z/L£/8 NI} SIEBA
‘auc)ssbpug (1) wouy spig £ panleoey S1vD ‘Buuado pig auo Z /M yim 21 € loj joB)U0D
L1/2Z/9 "JopusA 9|gisuodsal pue sAlsUCdSal 1SBMO| 8U) SEM LLiEL/2 poacidde 394 sieaf ¢ 1o} | 1oBHUOD ——————— | ‘suonesadQ (soueULUIEY)
aucisabplig jey) pauluuelep Sem J| -£1/08/9 'auc)sabpug LLBLIL 10BAUOD uauny (sieeh g aanL all sasng L_.ovp
0} JORIUOD JO plemE UE puswwods sjdaq jueiuaindold LLIBLIL panciddy [emu| 1011500 }58) seouBWY Aiddng
pue ‘JUIBN S1VO-LLIEL/L "LL/gL/L uo psaoiddy pieog panoiddy pieog pleog 0z/Le/8 LLILI6 000°009% auojsabpug |euale OSEDT aldl L
1
BPIAOI adA diiosa
SJUBWIWIOY | SBION paplAold parosddy | 8jeq ajeq Ty SweN dAL | uonduosaqg
Jonpold [s8@dlAleg pieog pug Hes IOpUdA 13uon 90IAISS

syjuow g 03 | ulyyim uoljdy pJeog Buipuad sjoafoid = an|g

_ mou |[eaciddy pieog spaau / Wa)| UONDY = MOJ[PA

_

6102 ‘0Z ¥snbny

pleog S1Vv9 40} Bupsi jJuswainosoid S1VI




SjusWIWo

papiAold SadIAIRSg

032

pug

1Y

- 030 Aq j08foud panoidde jsejel apeoipur sjybiybiy mojjek

junowy

(sewoy] eulead) 077 ‘esudiajug ‘039 8y} Jo uondaJIp Japun ‘sjuswyedep L0Z6L0Z Od asudisjug
_OVd 0} J0ehuoo panss| = 6102 AINE | S1vD Snouen Jo Jubisiono sepiroid JUBINSUOD | nuoguspum | BLILEZL 6L/62/L 000°'0s$ avid OV wiaju|
"sUOlOUNy WH pazienads "papeau se 039 e} Aq paubisse syse} "osiW P
JOYI0 puB 2JuEsISSE HH Bupnsuo) | Jayio pue 8ouepinb  ‘SISAJBUE  ‘UONE)NSUOD gLa 188 BUD Bupnsuon 030 2y 0} BauB}sissy [eloads WK
810z UNp 0z0z 'LE AeN uBnoiy | ‘eolpe jo Aem AQ Se0INIBS/SB0IN0SAl MH | poy610z Od (4 05g) HH jaeljuon
10enuoO  papusixy — GLOZ  BUnp | aAuebisanul [eRUSpyUoO sapinoid JUBYNSUOD | puopuspum | 02/LE/S 8L/LI9 000'0s$ | Wel8Ag 8eQ ueyNsuod yUH
"000°0§$ JUNOWE JOBIUOD XE v 30 dnoig
‘gLoz Jel ‘sebueyd Jsylo oN ‘6L0Z (BulAgqol) seo1nI9S [BUOBONPT PUEB SUCHERY L nﬂwowhm_.wn Y Xep ABajesyg Buninsuoy
ybnouy} 10BAUOD pusix3 — BLOZ JBN | ‘siepy  [BjuswuIBA0D  sepiroid  JUBYNSUOD | puopushum | BLILEZLE BLIL/L 000°05$ usaynog Suolje|9y JUSWUIBA0D)
000°0€$ Jo xew pue
1U4/0G$ 1o} palsl| Se2IAas Ul @oueuld JO
Jojoaug Ag papasu aoue)sISsY — §L0Z | 018 ‘suoljeljiouoosl yueq ‘sajgealsoal sjuelb jo
Aepl sAep e -xoidde Joy joenuod | uoneoyusa ‘syunoodoe Bulpouooal ul souUE)lSISSE LLLELOZ Od joesjuod
Juauno pusixe 0} S1vD — 6L0Z AINF | yim juswiedsg soueuld spinosd 0) JueyNsuoD | juog uspm | 6LIS/0L 6LiSIy 000‘0€$ SLJBH DI2IA juejinsuoy |efoueul
‘6102 .mm_‘ ‘uomsod 1820 paeoxg uonisod
AON yBnoayy 0z AON uo pom uibeq | Buyjelsdo JelyD SLvD Ul Joy ouess sy Ul 0110N o1
0} .6l JSQWSAON UO IOPUSA 0} Juas | Wes) Juswabeuew Joluss S)i pue S1yD Isisse LEZ8L0Z Od Wy Xep ‘Auedwog 0090 S1VD 10} sadialag
SEM P3320.d 0} 810N — 8L0Z ‘61 AON | 0} Moddns |eucissajoid apinoid 0} JUEYNSUOD | suog uapum | 6LIGL/LE 81/02/L1 000°sZ$ 2 O3S I Yydieag aAlInaaxy
‘|lemauay
JlesA suQ -ZLoz uebag nuo) BuQ
's)se) Brup uo asessoul 0504 e Auo ‘seafo|dwa aAnisuas A1ajes 10j sao1n8s 80IAIBS JO BANISUSS Ajojes 10} S20IMIBS v B 0
UM NSHI Yim JOBIUOD [BMBUSI YlUOW | 8snge 8ouelsgns/ [oyooly 3 Bnig o) saoiaias 7606102 Od syjuow g wpy Aued payy
-ZL 8y} Buipueixe si SIvD — 6LIBIE | 1oeisiuiwpy Buiiued piyl pelepuBw Y14 | juon uspim 0Z/0E/ 6LILIS 000'61% NSHI o€ 19402 @ Bnig
"diysiepes| S1yD PUE pieog
‘g)o|dwo2 o} syjuow g Apjewixoidde | o} juas aq [m Lodal euld “Apms uonesuadiios SadlAIRg
aq pinoys suiwi] "S1yD o) |esodosd AJe|ES 10} Sjod eW Jeiwis o} aiedwoo pajeuIuLa) jjauag
papiwgns  Jeybees  —  gL/0Z/LL pue diysiapes] S1VD UM J8all O} JUBYNSUOD |  1uog uapum 1N 6L/LIL 000'5tS$ Jaybejles Apnig dwoy Aiejeg
"pazi[euld J9BNUOD — SLZ LIV
‘8L/LE/Z)L ybnouyy pusixa pue
‘GZ9'Z1$ 4O JUNOWE Jualnd 0} G9/'8L$
PPV ﬁ%mm:a. PBJUOD  -8L/9Z/L
'B6L/SL/S ubnolyy pusixe pue 06L'2$
PPY :papuswy }JoBNUOD — GL/6LIL ‘(ege (e8¢ ¥d) sBuimesg [enydesuon
'6102/1/6 UBNOIU) PUSIXS PUB 0F9'ZL$ | -Hd SIS MEWep / BueloD Je suswaroldwl | |cosloz Od Jwy xepy | "9u] ‘@lo9 HeuwepM euepod
PPY :papuauly JOeNUOD — GL/ZZ/S | GNH HSUBIL Wa| auy spiaoid (M JUBYNSUOD | nuog uspum 6LILI6 sLioLiYy 0z8'or$ g S0JUON RV
139
PY Yuejd @ 130 ysuel]
18 PEOY YUB|d PUE JejueD HSUel ] SUEHOJ JeisalIalos
JOPUSA 0] | BUBLIOD 1B SB80IA8S  uonosdsu| JUSPISSY | zg0610z Od dnoig uonjoadsuj juspisay
JUSS puUB pajNoexs J0BNUOD — 6L/8Z/S | Pue Bunss| sjeusjely epiaoid 0} JOJOBHUOD | juog ushum 0Z/0g/E 6LIZIY 000°0S$ ejed 8yl ® Bupsa sjeuajep
REANS CETHITETH]
IOpUsA 0} | ® uopdadsu| B8NS |IAID) B pUB JUSLLSSISSY 0606102 Od yels jaye ‘ouj PAlG EBPLIO|] 0SZZ
JUSS pue paNoaxs J0BNUCD — 61/9/9 | Jusuodwo) Buiping e sje|dwod o} Jueynsuod | nuoguspum | SAEp Gf 6L/62/E 005'8¥$ ‘HO3109 S1VD jo jusissassy
“J0pUBA 0] uoneslddy juelsy pue 10afold 148 8y) Jo 8vL6L0Z Od WY X uonesodion | @duejsissy uoneslddy
JUSS pue pajndsxs JOBJUOD — L/OEIS | SI0SdSE UIBMSD LM SIVD ISISSE 0} JUBYNSUOD | suojusuum | 6LILEZLE 6LIvZIS L19'G6vS$ g1NH juel9 dTing 1oda sn
panouddy aleq aleq aweN

uonduosaqg




‘SISEq papaau

Buynsuon
SB UE U0 ‘OyD pue labeuely juswainoold JUeWaINo0ly
IY/SH$ @1ey "suonoun) Jusweindold | 8yl Aq peubisse se sysel EmEE:wEn__ W%mm aLIoL/6 N zapueulaH jue}lNsSuon
pazielnads Jayl0 PuB SJUBJSISSE | pue ‘SadIAIes ||eD-UO, Uiim Buppom Ajeolyl NE‘E‘F__UM n_wn_ - BLI0L/E 000'066 Auzex JUBWIAIND0IY
swainoold Buginsuopy — gLoZ 1des | ‘seonues Juswalndold SapiAcid  JUBYNSUOD | nuon ushUm
UEREYLEI |
[8S3IQ puUe IO Buigin] DINEIpAH 104
piq }samo| sem [an4 zanBlyy -asealn)
[88UAA 8 PINI] UoIsSIWSURI] ‘IO 100 (piny
‘110 499 - IO} pIg 1SOMmO| 3y} sem (IO }sneyxa
JSE0D UNS — "S}oNpoid paje@y |10 o i
fanlep pue aseyaind auy 1oy sialddns 10 BUIGIN
ajeiedas g 0] pieme piq Mau olNeJpAH)
pancidde pieog —LL/LL/L “Auoyine 019923
ployseiyy 03D 8y uiym sie pue HEDE]
BL/LE/ZL MUl BL/L/L Jo pouad By} Jo} B WA
Jeak auo IO} pamaual aqg [[IM SIOBJjUOD JOBUOD YyoeD
assy| ‘[end zenbiy woy sonposd 104 00005$
Jo g ue 1Se09 uUNg LWolY Kt
Bw:%%ﬂmﬂm mﬂc.h 1$ 0} 102 |Enuue ‘9zasujue pue |iIo _EoE. ale swayl z asay| vwmwm_ pried —_—
pajoalold ayl Buuamo| Agalayy ‘abesn ‘810Z Jeak ay) Joy o,oo 0.$ Aj@lewixoidde s i e B
payedionue [euiBuo ay) UBY] SS8| YonL je pajewnss s| soud se ‘|eaoldde 4oy pieog o) o it pINg "suex
S8 /107 3AD J0} SIONPOIY PaIEI@Y | OB [l 8S3UL "SAED OF AU SU) UILIM PajIjos o) a|qe opayuks
10 8y} Joj eBesn ay) jey; paulwislap aq (M g1]| mauy .v_.n 24 ||m ‘saseatoul $1030 S1VD ,__.o 1B89)
usaq Sey ) — LL/SLIZL ClUdy 2oud Jaybiy 0} anp ‘pamaual Jou sway| G wwo it
ul ‘1.6$ Joy zanbBi 0} JoB1UOD [0} niys sjgelEnE Ll $ &
m>w.~k%_m Mﬂ pieog "0/9'9€$ Jo} swel '9sealou| J0j SUoenNo|ed |dd apineld S|EMaUa) ums|mo o mmwmwhum..ﬁ_ﬂ,on:m_w“%.,mmwmm_ﬂm
1810 Jo} S1VD Ulm 10BIUOD AJusLnd | 0] SPaau JOPUSA ‘|emaual ay) ,:.u aun je |dd W 1eaf auo (soueuBIR)
Asyy pue ‘000'SL$ 10} BzBAUY uo paseq juswisnlpe eoud ‘zz/9L/L ybnowy | ¢ sey j0eiue) (10 J010M) By uﬁm_wm
aul papieme ag pinom |an4 zanbiy 1o spouad 1eaf (|) suo aAISSE09Ns (§) JNoy L/LE/ZL ..uNm o jonp
‘029'vE$ 104 1O JoJ0N 8yl pepieme | 0} dn @|qe|ieAe suOndo [emauSY 19BIUOD LLOZ | NUU LL/LL/L .mu_o:m s pue
8Q pnom 8210y) olldd "azeaunuy ‘61/1L€/2} ybnoiy) 1oEHUOY "BZIBYRUY PUE (IO c@.é%am — : < 2 g .__.r :m,“_ms_ S 1o
PUE 1O JOjJo Joj palioIlos gLI — 6L/ | 10j0 Joj uondo [emausi (1) Buo sey g1] 6102 pleog BLILERZL !
‘Bunasw
pleog Jedoid 8y} je peajuasaid syuow g
8g pinom yoiym ‘oenucd  1abuo) .
macE_ gue 0] asooyds ABw S1yD Aessaoau _Wwwﬁ.ﬂww
‘weiboid 10|14 J8Yy 'Sy} psaoidde | punoj SE seale 1ayjo _ucmH Mmﬁ.ﬂﬂ wmmw_y.uoo._ of taile s S| weiboid
ue Bugeaw pleog | Jeu} SeEale JUsSLIND BU} JO SpISIN I l . . olid HSUEI30ID!
m%wmm uwm_w:omwv sem m._«E — mm.m_‘: SIVD onss o) weiboid jopd HSUBKOIOIN 6LISLIL 6LI6LI9 81/0Z/ZL 000's2$ hwﬁuﬂw o1id ¥ JOOIN
‘]0BAUO0D JO pJEME BulpusWWodal uoneoidal spry @ abelols pnojo Juawaoe|dal 00-onS i
FENE]] 039 usg ‘aamus | Juejsul ‘selepdn JA G .:ow:_m._m “MRMM mﬂwmm -81L0g# d4d saibojouyss) ao:a“w.:nn_(
SPUBLILIDIS] O3d'slesodoud | Janies suo ul | pue sspnjou; 8LITLI9 ; aimua 19195 dn yoeg |
m %w.;_mom: puE pasiuaApy - 8L0g 4dy | Bumisixa S vD Joj welshs || dn-joeq Jeak g wmcavoﬂmu mmw__uwmn\_m M _M__MM 82€'8T$ owcmv SR EBAHEEEE
papinoid panoiddy i 3al
SjusaWIWoy / S2ION Jonpold /SadIAIRS pieog pu3g Hels Wy lopusp uon CRITVETS

Syjuow € o} | ulylim uoindy pleog Buipuad sioaloid = an|g

_ mou [eaolddy pieog spaau [ Wa)| UOIIOY = MO|[DA

| 610z ‘0z 3snBny

pieog S1vD Joj BuisI JusWainooid S1VD




JULY 2019 Route Revenue and Ridership Totals

[ Route

Number |[Route Name RIDERSHIP | REVENUE
8 Gus Young Ave / BRCC 2,683
10 Scenic Hwy / Southern University 6,704
11 Northside Circulator / 72nd Ave / Scotlandyville 3,505
12 Government St/ Jefferson Hwy 7,794
14 Thomas Delpit Dr / Roosevelt St 4,835
15 Blount Rd / Crestworth 2,751
16 Capitol Park Trolley 50| Free service
17 Perkins Rd 10,446
18 |Tigerland / Cortana Mall 7,692
20 North Acadian Thwy 10,141
21 Fairfields Ave 7,089
22 Winbourne Ave 7,050
23 Foster Dr 5,490
a1 Plank Rd 18,990
44  |(Florida Blvd 29,655
46 Cortana / Gardere / L'auberge 7,322
47 Highland Rd / LSU 22,966
54 Airline Hwy North / Southern University / Metro Airport 11,156
57 Sherwood Forest Blvd / Greenwell Springs Rd 15,549
58 Coursey Blvd / O’'Neal Ln / Ochsner 4,436
59 East Florida Blvd / O'Neal Ln / Ochsner 5,350
60 Medical Circulator 1,134
70 CATS Terminal / Southern University / Baker 4,830
72 Florida Blvd Limited Stops 5,616
80 Southern University Shuttle / Jag Train 242| Free service

RIDERSHIP | REVENUE
Total 203,476| $ -




MIN
Req REd ABPLL SBIS
sewsuyn | Suaibsyuey Aeg Joqen asuapusdapu| |ELIOWSA poosy PRI SIBSA MON

[ 0 0 0 1] 0 53 0g 1e [5 1t g9c 15 sAep 2101

0 7] 0 0 0 a a 0 sheq Asuabiattia

€ G 5] v ¥ G 4 5 SABPUNS JO JBOWNN

¥E ¥ S 5 5 9 ¥ G SAEPINIES JO JAqUINN

gri [44 i f44 k4 [ 0z ¥4 SABPHOBAA JO JOqUINN

[T 3ag AON f=T6) dag By ionr unr Aeiy day Jey qad uer
[oss'siv’ o lo |o lo {0 |ezv'c0z |[6z0 0z lizg'ere |p9710Z |SBp'Ele je9riEe [est'ize | SdRd1 AIMNITNA TVLOL|
198 9 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0Ll 182 {6L0Z/c2Z/Z0 991/ua5 papua) ssoidxg umotumea oy 0t
99,91 [ZZ4 1821 208 FSE 219’ lozo's €95 spnys ANsIaAun waymog 0g
9ee'/e 919‘c 18y SyL'g 80c's 8GEY  [¥9SS LE0'S sdojs papwr palg eploLd (43
SFLOE 08y 065"y LOE'Y 105y 682y |SOL'Y 65L'y Jaxed j AjsIaAuf] WBLnog { [BUULS] S1VD [7
2989 7ELL 5Z0'1 €8T L 206 LL0°L [S¥L =7 A0IRMDLD [EIPaN 09
LET°9E 052’ IEL'G 0/£'G a80's ZLe's (088 965y 13USYIQ / U 122N.0O [ PAIE BPLIOH 35B] 69
Llev'ze 9" SBLY B Q0EY 0CLY [6%0F L08F JBUSUSO [ U [RIN,O [ PAIg ASsInoD 95
982701 675Gl gReSl  |Zle el ¥BLSL  [ipL'GL [0%ZEl orP'cl Py sbupdsg [lamusars [ pAlg 15810] poomiayg 1s
SSHDL 0 3] 0 3] 0 0 0 0 Q 0 G6v'f 098°G (6L0Z/£2/20 9IIAIDS PUPUD) PATR-IRL /T RIHISRAG RN OF HEn £S5
£9E'S 0 1} 0 0 [+ 0 0 0 0 0 Fa 1182 {6L0z/57/70 oomues papus) Sxda=eFPAEePEOHISES 5
VAT 9GL7LL G286 8501 86L'0L  [Z06°0L (8402 |00QZL Hodliny onsiy / AJISIsAIU WSUINOG [ YHON AMH aullny ¥
L0LT 0 [ 0 0 ¢} 0 0 i 0 0 98z’ BLE'L (6102/c2/20 BoIAIBS POPUB) JOIRIADADJTNES 8
o'y 0 7 0 [} 0 0 0 i Q 0 €20 g (6102/£2/z0 50IAISS Popus) doTEMOHS SHEC WIS [
ore'gol 986'2e Liv'ee  |985°2ZC 6L6°bC  |BVFVE [86BLFT 189'Gg NS/ Py puepyBiH Iy
6v0'9E ZEe L Lay'L A L. gos'e |0 0 {6L02/72/20 BoLUAS UrDag) 9BIDANR,T | DISPIED | BUBLICD 512
1oL 0 o 0 a o 0 0 0 0 0 3%T'S £8E'S (6L02/£2/20 90IAISS popUa) SBIeqRe, 111010 o4opieD)] ETd
099'9Le §59'62 ors'0e  |e0s'le 06L°0E |¥BE'0E  |eLE'CE 666'CE PAIg BpLiol] ¥y
£El9ElL 066°81 9sr'8l  [§ls'0Z Gel'gl  |oeg'0z (90Z'kz  |SEV'OT Py ueld [
64201 06+°s £F0°9 Yer's 691G 169G [86l9 0.6 1Q 191504 =3
04181 0S0°L arD’L 905’z I 906'e  [200°L G80'8 SAY SLLINOGUIRA] Fr3
[T 660'L POL'L 068°L 815’0 €290 2529 L2LG SAY SPIRIMIRS 1z
£72'69 L¥LCL 08Z'6 S0S'8 (/68 LZL0L [002'01  |€GS0L Amy | uRIpEDY UHON 0z
gelZs 269°L fAL: Ge9°L 418D £€92°L  [SBeL YaL'L 1B\ BUBHOD J puepabll 81
LBL'LL aFr'oL Ivi'0L  |2ei'el ZeF 0L [ELLTLL [8Le'0L B¥6'LL PY sunjled Iy
£5€ 0s ¥ £Z 9 ] L £rl falo1) ied [onden al
¥89°GL 161 1887 95’ G20t €60E  |Z8F 0 (6102772120 @o1ates UeBag) YHoMSal) | Py Jinolg Fi2
£6EFE GeR'Y LY ¥88°G LELG eI’ |eZeF £9E'Y 15 Naaesooy] [ g Hdjag sewoy vl
EEEE v8L'L GLLL 90Z'e aglLg MBS |£80'6 695'6 ARH UGSIQUOT [ IS JUSWINISACD f43
£86°0T SO FEYE 9ELT ¥RE°C 620F [88lLY FLLY 3||IADUB[103G [ @AY PUZL [ JOJBNAIID SPISYHON b
£21°0G Y0L9 Ze9's 0|p°L £aFL gLeL  [I88'7 £90°L Aussenup waginog / Ay oweog ol
9EL 02 £89'Z [ 600'E g6z - [1e1's  [r1o0%E 8¥6'T 20ud / 2Ay Bunoj, sng g
2101 Jaquiasa | sequeaaoN | eqoypg | Jequiapize | jshnbny Amnp sunp Rew udy yael |Aemgad Aenuep JWYN I1Ln0N| wagwnn
2100Y

6LOZ AN J03 LA 8noy




89°6E8°GLLS |0L¥'e0z |Przezos [s6vBL'8S |6Z°CZrLOLS ZE6'LL L0991 £v6'vilL  |IBl0L

89°6£8'GLLS

00°0% e 90IAJ3S ON| 99JI1AISS ON| 921A48S 9814 90IAI19S ON| 291A18S ON|Z¥Z uiea] Ber ; apanysg Ajisiaalun ulayjnos 08
€2°8907$  |919S @01AI9S ON| @21A18S ON|CZ'890'Z$ 80IAIBS ON| @21A19S ON|919°G sdoig pajwi pajg epuold| gz
61292t  |oe8y G6 L¥LS Z6961$ 7€°826'2% €1z G6E zzey Jaxeq [ ApsiaAlun uleyinog / [eulwia) S1vd| 0L
0z'z8vs$ vELL S6 e 0.°02% SG0ZrS 6L €5 296 Jojenoal) [edipaly| 09
ZLzll'es  |osE's 08'602% 967923 9662 €S 662 197 78Sy JausysQ / u7 [eaN,Q [ PAIG BPHOId 1SBT| 65
ov'ozr'es  [9ch'V 92IAI3S ON|(69'8ELS 11718223 20IAI9S ON|BSZ 1Y JausydQ / U [eaN,O f PAIg Aesinod| 8§
68'8/2°LLS  |6¥SSL £1165% G6'€£9% 11°€61°01L$ 068 991'L E6¥'Cl u7 uabalg / py sBundg [[emusaio | pAjg I1saiod poomiaug| LS
£1'006'9%  [9SL°LL L6°G07$ L9 IvtS LZ'€50'9% £09 [ 8086 Aysiaaun wisyinog / Jodily ona| / yHoN Amy aulpny| g
v0'ez8'LLs [9962C 16°20.% G9'860°L$  [8¥'0L0°0LS 0zs'L 8YE'Z 860°6} NS/ Py pueybiH|  z¥
z0'60'ss  [2TE'L 0£'8.E% 9125t 95'8.¥v$ 696 8G/ 666G abiaqne,7 / aJopien jeuenod| oy
£6'6GE VLS [G59'6C £1'G06$ 9/.69Z'L% [v¥'¥8LZLS ¥60'C 1182 0S.'v2 pAaig BPUOld| b
S9'LLO'0LS [066'8L 722293 ¥112.% 69'L92°6$ LOE'} 96%} €61'01 paueld| Ly
9.182'¢$  |06¥'S 09'6ELS$ z/'691% v7'2.6'T$ [X<F4 062 6v6't 1gsesod| gz
98'cLEYy$s  [0S0°L 80°85Z%$ 0z'sees 85°02.c$ 99% #G9 0€6'S aAy awinoquip|  zz
6.°0L6'¢$ [680°L £.°6£2% 86'8€Z3 80'ZEV'ES 0% 129 866'G oAy splRlMied| Lz
6Z'€0L9%  [L¥LOL 1G°292% 0Z'997% 85'69€'GS 10S G683 Gy.'8 Amy] ueipedsy yuoN| 0z
ZLLI9%S  [zZ69'L ov ¥SZ$ Ze'02es ¥6'260 7% 91G 859 8150 llew eueo) [ puepsbiL| gl
€0vY'sS  |9vbioL ¥'S0ES 8v'G62$ L1 ov8 TS 785 LE9 €26 py subplad| 11
00°0% (115 DOIAIDS ON| 9IIAIDS ON| 9IIAISS 9914 @JIAI9S ON| 9JIAI3S ON|0G 2RNYs yied _D..:QMU a9l
SZPe6'LS [1SLT LO'6.% 68’683 62°G9L°1$ aLL 111 85¥2 yuomisal) [ py Junojg [ syeQ us|9| Gl
1506823  [5€8F 98'v.1L$ 62°9ET$ 9L 6LY'TH €82 99 9807 1S Jenssooy [1g ndjeq sewoyl| i
1S0E€'€S  |P6L'L 606919 98°zees 29'826'7% Frag 069 1190 AmH uosiayer /1S JuswuwiBAon|  ZL
£6'€1678  [S0S°T 60'/81% ¥1°002% 0.98L'C% 8.z 108 0262 9||IAPUE[}ODS [ BAY pUZ/ [ 10}[NDIID @PISYHON| L]
¥6'908'c$  |POL9 LEEPLS £50vZs Y0'EZF'c$ ¥62 G6¥ GL6'S aj|iApueoog [ AHSIBAIUN WayInos [ AMH o1uads| 0L
10'69L°LS  [€89°C 0£°96$ ¥226% y0Z0°'L$ zyl 6Lz TET 20ud [ 9ay Bunop sno| 8

aNNIA3Y |diysiepry | Aepung | Aepimeg | Aepyaspp Aepung | Aepinjes | Aepyosp awep 2jnoy Jaqun
9JN0}
Iv10L ANNAATH diHsy3aa

AVA 40 IdAL Ag 31LN0YH d3d INNIATH ANV dIHSHIAI™N d3dH0I3d JHVANTIOD 6102 Anr



